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DEPARTMEST OF TRANSPORTA TJON

WUliam Cass, P.E.

Assistant Commissioner

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council June 7, 2021

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an agreement with VNA at HCS, Inc. (Vendor
177274), Keene, NH, for an amount not to exceed $ 651,592.00 for public transportation services in the
City of Keene for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. 97% Federal Funds, 3% General Funds

Funding for this agreement is contingent upon the availability of funds in Fiscal Year 2022 and Fiscal
Year 2023, with the ability to adjust encumbrances through the Budget Office between State Fiscal
Years if needed and justified.

04-96-96-964010-2916

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Proflts-Federal

04-96-96-964010-2916

Public Transportation
073-509074 Grants Non-Federal

FY 2022

$338,600.00

$8,696.00

FY 2023

$295,600.00

$8,696.00

EXPLANATION

The Department has approved a request for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funding from VNA at
HCS, Inc. to assist in the provision of public transit service. This agreement includes Federal COVID
relief funding including the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act enacted
March 27, 2020 and the American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act enacted March 11, 2021. The FTA
apportioned funding to all states to support operating, capital, and other expenses generally eligible
under the FTA Section 5311 Rural Area Formula Program. This request includes formula and relief
funds from each of the aforementioned funding programs as well as State general funds to assist in
meeting the non-federal match requirements.

VNA at HCS, Inc. is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation,
including transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities, in the City of Keene. The
Department has allocated federal and State funding for the FY 2022-2023 biennium based on prior
funding levels, applications received, and available funds. For the FY 2022-2023 biennium, VNA at
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HCS will receive $634,200.00 of FTA Section 5311 funds and $17,392.00 of State general funds.
Details relative to each funding program and VNA at HCS, Inc. award of these funds are outlined below.

The Department's proposed SFY 2022 and 2023 operating budget includes funds from the FTA Section
5311 Formula Grants for Rural Areas Program (Section 5311) that provides funds for capital, planning,
and operating assistance for public transportation in rural areas with populations of less than 50,000.

The Department released a public notice on January 14, 2021 announcing the availability of FTA
Section 5311 funds. Applications for requested funding were due on March 01, 2021. The Department
received applications for six (6) rural public transit systems and awarded funds to each transportation
system. The systems and their respective application scores are as follows:

Transit System Applicant Average Score

Advance Transit Advance Transit, Inc. 89.30%

Sullivan County Transportation Southwestern Community Services 86.30%

Concord Area Transit

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. 82.20%

Carroll County Transit Tri-County Community Action Program 78.80%

City Express

VNA at Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community
Services 78.70%

North Country Transit Tri-County Community Action Program 78.30%

An evaluation committee that consisted of the Public Transportation Administrator, Transit Grants
Coordinator, and the Transportation Specialist reviewed, evaluated, and scored FTA Section 5311
applications based on criteria as indicated in the application materials and the Department's State
Management Plan for FTA programs. The evaluation matrix is provided below for reference:

Evaluation Criteria i Weight

: 1
The proposed service effectively addresses a demonstrated community need, and/or
the proposed service is a continuation or expansion of existing services.

15%

2'
'  i

The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate its
service.

15%

3 The applicant has successful experience in providing transportation services. 15%

4
The application shows coordination with other transportation providers in the service
area: public, nonprofit, and for-profit.

10%

1

5
The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project, financial and
otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government.

10%

6
The applicant demonstrates effort to involve the private sector in the delivery of
transportation services.

10%

7

The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness,
measured in ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare recovery. New
applicants must demonstrate the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.

15%



8
The applicant complies with relevant federal and state regulations, and has a history
of compliance with regulations and reporting requirements.

10%

100%

Note: Every application met the Department's criteria for inclusion in its SFY 2022-2023 public
transit funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the aforementioned transit
systems.

The Department's proposed SFY 2022 and 2023 operating budget includes $200,000.00 of State Funds
per year to assist 10 public transit systems with matching FTA Section 5311 (Rural) or 5307 (Urban)
operating funds. The State Funds will be distributed to transit systems based on three ridership tiers and
will be distributed as follows:

Cateeory Agency •''' ' ' ; ■ Ridershipi SFY 2020 SFY 2021

Tier 1: Less than 50,000 Rides

TCCAP- North Country Transit 26,319 $8,696.00 $8,696.00

TCCAP- Carroll County Transit 1,720 $8,696.00 $8,696.00

Southwestern Community Services 18,007 $8,696.00 $8,696.00

VNA (SJ HCS (Keene City Express) 23,014 $8,696.00 $8,696.00

CART (an MTA service) 11,607 $8,696.00 $8,696.00

Subtotal $43,480.00 $43,480.00

Tier 2: 50,000 to 200,000 Rides

BMCAP- Concord Area Transit 71,177 $17,392.00 $17,392.00

Subtotal $17392.00 $17392.00

Tier 3: Over 200,000 Rides .i V

Advance Transit 630,023 $34,782.00 $34,782.00

Manchester Transit Authority (MTA) 309,983 $34,782.00 $34,782.00

City of Nashua (Nashua Transit) 340,677 $34,782.00 $34,782.00

COAST 330,800 $34,782.00 $34,782.00

Subtotal $139,128.00 $139,128.00

Total Ridership Distribution $200,000.00 $200,000.00

Eight agencies operate the 10 public transit systems and will receive state operating funds in the
amounts listed above. The state funds will assist public transit systems in meeting the non-federal match
requirements and will provide financial support for New Hampshire's public transit services. Non-
federal matching funds of at least 50% are required for transit operations. VNA at HCS, is included in
the Tier I ridership category; and will receive $8,696.00 per year and a total of $17,392.00 for the
biennium.

VNA at HCS, Inc., in conjunction with its regional partners as applicable, will provide the remaining
required non-federal matching funds. Stimulus funding supported by FTA at 100% in the form of
CARES and ARP will be utilized by drawing against the CARES balance first and then ARP funds. If
Federal Funds become unavailable, no additional general funds will be requested to support this
program.



The agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution. Copies of the fully
executed agreement are on file at the Secretary of State's Office and the Department of Administrative
Services' Office; and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the Department of
Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Attachments

Sincerely,

2^. f-
Victoria F. Sheehan

Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 11/7/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and

Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly Identiried to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Transportation

1.2 State Agency Address
PC Box 483.7 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03302-0483

1.3 Contractor Name

VNA@HCS
1.4 Contractor Address

312 Marlboro St.. PC Box 564, Keene, NH 03431 -4163

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-352-2253

1.6 Account Number

04-96-96-9640 0-2916-072-

500575

1.7 Completion Dale
June 30, 2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$65.1,592.00

1.9 Conlraaing Officer for State Agency
Michelle Winters, Administrator, Bureau of Rail &. Transit

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-2468

1.11 Contraoor Signatufc— 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 £tati Agency Signature 1.14 Name Signatory

Director

Aeronautics, Rail and Transit
1.15 lApproval by the N.H. Department of Admlnislratiott, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number; G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siatc of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
(**$1016"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
CXHontracior") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effeaive on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provide in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds, in
the event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such
funds become available, if ever, and shall have the right to
reduce or terminate the Services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction or termination. The State shall not be required to
transfer funds from any other account or source to the Account
identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that Account are

reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment ore identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT C which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
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performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The Slate reserves the right to ofTset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. K.SA 80:7
through RS A 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the
Contractor shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules,
regulations and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and
guidelines as the State or the United States issue to implement
these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply with all
applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap,
sexual orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts
for the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules,
regulations and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions
of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide ail
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed
and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subconlractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in o combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or ofTlcial, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this Agreement
This provision shall survive icrminaiion of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting OfTicer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of
any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Slate.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcundcr

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2)
days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and set off against any other obligations the State
may owc'to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by
reason of any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at taw or in equity,
or both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights
with regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event
of Default No express failure to enforce any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce
each and all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other
Event of Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Slate may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State Is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting OrTicer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the
date of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing
in detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned,
to and including the dale of termination. The Ibrm, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report described
in the attached EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's
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discretion, the Contractor shall, within IS days of notice of
early termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition
Plan for services under the Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
flics, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video <
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from the
State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be
returned to the Slate upon demand or upon termination of this
Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice,
which shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days
prior to the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For
purposes of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions
in which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any
provisions contained in a subcontract or an assignment
agreement to which it is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by
law, the Comractor shall indcmnliy and hold harmless the
State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all
claims, liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property
damages, patent or copyright infringement, or other claims
asscned against the State, its oftlccrs or employees, which arise
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oui of (or which may be ciaimcd to arise out of) the acts or

omission of the Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not
limited to the negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The
State shall not be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor
arising under this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver
of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity Is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

U. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole eitpense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than SI,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.12 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
Stale of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance,
and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
identi (led in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certi ficatefs) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also iumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatefs) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under thi.s
Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy. The cenificate(s) of insurance
and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference.

IS. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

I S.I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or
exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensation ").
IS.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 28I>A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to
this Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting
Officer identiried in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of
Workers' Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA
chapter 281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which
shall be attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The
State shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.
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16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hertto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing hy certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Slates Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only aflcr approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent,
and no rule of construction shall be applied against or in favor
of any party. Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be
brought and maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court
which shall have exclusive Jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFUCTINC TERMS. In the event of a connict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parlies and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are
incorporated herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions
of this Agreement will remain in full force and efTecl.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, wliich may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject
matter hereof.
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VNA@HCS
EXHIBITS TO CONTRACT

EXHIBIT A Special Provisions

EXHIBIT B Scope of Services

EXHIBIT C Budget

EXHIBIT D Vehicle List

Certificate of Good Standing

Certificate of Corporate Vote

Certificate of Insurance

FTA Certifications and Assurances

FTA Master Agreement

DOL Special Warranty - Unified Protective Arrangement

2 CFR Part 200

FTA Section 5311

Social Service Documents to Include:

501 (c)
Financial Report
Board of Directors

Key Personnel and Salaries
Resumes



VNA @ HCS, INC.
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A.I. Amend P-37 Section 2. "EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO BE

PERFORMED" by adding the following:

2.1 'Die Contractor may change services only with the prior written agreement of the State
and in accordance with applicable Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements.

A.2. Amend P-37 Section 5. "CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/PAYMENT' by
adding the following:

5.5 As applicable based on Federal participation ratios, the amount paid by the State to the
Contractor shall not exceed 50% ofallowable operating costs less fare revenues plus 80%
of allowable administrative and capital costs. Operating, administrative and capital cofits
are identified In Exhibit B. The Contractor shall provide and document the availability
of local funds sufFicient to meet the project cost in excess of the Contract Price
Limitation.

5.6 In the event that revenues exceed the total allowable costs, said revenues in excess of
total allowable costs shall be placed in an interest-bearing account within 30 days of the
Completion Date and made available to the State upon demand.

5.7 The Contractor shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the
State on a monthly orquarterly basis, together with all information to support the request.
Such requests for payment shall be properly completed and signed. Requests for
payments must be forallowable costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200. No requests for
advance payment will be accepted by the State.

5.8 Upon receipt of the request for payment, the Stale shall review the request to determine
the allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand
production of (and the Contractor shall produce) and inspect any documents and records
described in Section 5.

5.9 Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records
required by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount
due and owing to the Contractor and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions
of this Agreement. Contract reimbursements shall not exceed 50% of the total contract
amount in any given quarter.

5.10 Final Payment. Satisfactory acceptance by the State and FTA of all reports required by
this Agreement is a condition precedent to final payment (i.e., payment for the last month
or portion thereof of this Agreement). All reports will be prepared to the satisfaction of
the State and Federal Transit Administration (FTA). The final payment may be retained
and withheld pending receipt and satisfactory acceptance of all reports required by this
Agreement and resolution of all pending matters.

A.3. Amend P-37 Section 6. "COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY" by adding the following:



6.4 The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants
for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause.

6.5 The Contractor shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all
qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race,
color, age, creed, sex or national origin.

6.6 The provisions of 2 CFR 200 shall apply to local administration of this agreement and
any subcontracts under this agreement.

A.4. Amend P-37 Section 9. "DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/PRESERVATION" by
adding the following:

9.4 The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of
this agreement:
a) Except for its own internal use, the Contractor may not publish or reproduce such

data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Contractor authorize
others to do so, without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA
may have cither released or approved the release of such data to the public.

b) As authorized by 2 CFR 200, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others
to use, for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grant, cooperative
agreement, sub-grant, or third party contract, irrespective of whether a copyright has
been obtained; and any rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third
party contractor purchases ownership with Federal assistance.

9.5 It is FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the
Contractor understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.4 (b) above,
FTA may make available to any recipient, subgrantee, contractor or subcontractor its
license in the copyright to the date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data
first produced under this Agreement.

9.6 The Contractor shall indemnify, save and hold harmless the State and United States, their
officers, agents and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any
liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation
of the proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication,
translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this
Agreement

9.7 Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any
patent or be construed as afTecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise
granted to the United States under any patent.

9.8 Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above are not applicable to material furnished to the Contractor
by the State or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement;
provided that such incorporated material is identified by the Contractor at the time of
delivery of such work.



9.9 In the event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under that
project shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the
State or FTA may direct.

A.5. Amend P-37 Section 10. "TERMINATION" by adding the following:

10.1 The termination report must be accepted by the Slate and the Federal Transit

Administration (FTA) prior to final payment.

10.2 Termination; Liability. In the event of termination under Section 4 or 10.4 of this

Agreement, the acceptance of a Termination Report by the State shall in no event relieve
the Contractor from any and all liability for damages sustained or incurred by the State
as a result of the Contractor's breach of its obligations hereunder, including refund of any
federal funds required by FTA.

10.3 Completion of Services: Payment of Price. Excepting those obligations of the Contractor
which, by the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the
completion of the Services and upon payment of the Contract Price, this Agreement, and
alt obligations of the parties hereunder, shall cease and shall be without recourse to the
parties hereto.

10.4 Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the
contrary, either the State or, except where notice of default has been given to the
Contractor hereunder, the Contractor may terminate this Agreement without cause upon
thirty (30) days written notice.

A.6. Amend P-37 Section 12. "ASSIGNMENTS/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS" by
adding the following:

12.1 The Contractor shall cause the provisions of this contract to be inserted in alt subcontracts
for any work covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each
subcontractor; provided, however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to
subcontractors for standard commercial supplies or raw materials. The Contractor shall

. take such action with respect to any subcontract as the State may direct as a means of
enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance. The Contractor shall
ensure that any subcontractor has obtained all licenses, pemiits or approvals required for
the performance of contract services.

A.7. Amend P-37 Section 14. "INSURANCE" by adding the following:

14.1.1 .a. The State of New Hampshire, Department of Transportation has accepted the General
Liability insurance of $ 1,000,000 per occurrence, $3,000,000 General Aggregate for Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. in fulfillment of the requirements of Section
14.1.1 General Liability Insurance of the P-37 form.

A.8. Amend P-37 by adding "DEFINITIONS" as Section 25:

25. DEFINITIONS

ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services

3



described in Exhibit A and which satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200.

FTA: U.S. Department ofTransportation, Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures and/or maps submitted to
the State detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Contract as
modified and approved by the State.

REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation
services being provided by the Contractor. Revenues also include funds from contracts,
purchase of service agreement, and excess matching funds that directly benefit the
transportation service.

SECTION 5311; Section 531! of the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended.

STATE: The State ofNew Hampshire, acting through the Department ofTransportation,
Bureau of Rail and Transit.

A.9. Amend P-37 by adding "ACCOUNTrNG, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26:

.1. Ledgers. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain ledger sheets for each
budget category. Entries shall be made and shall reflect the financial activities of the
Contractor. The ledger sheet must be in a form approved by the State. The ledger will
indicate the funds remaining in each line item of the Contract Budget at the beginning of
each month. Entries shall be made on a running basis and carried over to the following
month; that is, figures will be brought fonvard cumulatively. Contractor shall also prepare
and submit to the State a profit and loss statement quarterly if such information is not
provided with invoices.

.2. Accoants Receivable. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall deposit all revenue in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this State. Contractor shall prepare and
maintain receipt vouchers for all revenue. Immediately upon receipt. Contractor and/or
subcontractor shall credit all revenue to the appropriate receipt account. Contractor and/or
subcontractor shall establish and maintain an Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt
number appearing in the Ledger shall correspond to the receipt voucher number. A receipt
voucher must be completed on a form approved by the State and shall identify each
component of every deposit. All appropriate supporting documents for each deposit should
be attached to the receipt voucher.

.3. Payables. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall prepare vouchers to document ail expenditures
of funds. The voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a
form approved by the State: The Division and account numbers from which the funds will
be drawn, the date of expenditure, a voucher number running in sequence, and any
appropriate comments supporting the expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll
vouchers). All invoices received by the Contractor shall be checked for accuracy and
allowability. Each invoice must be approved for payment by the Contract Manager or
designee. Immediately upon payment, Contractor and/or subcontractor shall make entries
to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment. (Each subcontractor shall identify



a Contract Manager).

.4. Voucher and Receipt Register. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain
two registers that will contain a running total of all payable receipt vouchers. The registers
will provide a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount and purpose of action. No
self-desi^ated abbreviations are to be used.

.5. Check Register. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall maintain a check register. This register
is also considered a book oforiginal entry, and is posted to the ledger immediately.

.6. Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benefits. Contractor and/or subcontractor shall require each of its
employees to: I) submit weekly time reports designating work performed and time spent
on such work, or 2) be included in an indirect cost allocation plan approved by the
cognizant Federal agency. The contractor shall summarize time reports by task and apply
employee's rates of pay to the hours worked. The Contract Manager shall review completed
and signed time reports, and cause them to be posted to the appropriate category in the
general ledger. The Contractor shall maintain records ofemployee payroll and benefits and
shall post this information to the appropriate category in the general ledger. 'I'he Contract
Manager shall ensure that all payments are on a timely basis.

.7. Reimbursements. On a monthly basis, the Contractor shall submit a description of Contract
activities, in a format as required by the State. Should the Contractor show a profit for any
month, the Contractor shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent reimbursement
requests. The Contractor shall agree to provide information in addition to the monthly
narrative at such limes and in such manner as the State may require, and to prepare any
reports which may be requested by the State including but not limited to a final or
termination report if operations cease.

.8. Maintenance of Records. The Contractor shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FI'A grant is closed. The
Contractor shall maintain, and make available to the State and FTA, records relating to
complaints and comments received from the public. In the event the State disputes the
Contractor's operations or records as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution
shall rest with the State.

.9. Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and fora period
of three (3) years after the F'l A grant is closed or the date of resolution of all manors
relating to this Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Contractor's normal
business hours, and as often as the State or FTA may demand, the Contractor shall make
available to the State and FTA or their designees all records pertaining to matters covered
by this Agreement. The Contractor shall permit the Stale and FTA to audit, examine, and
reproduce such records, and to make audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls,
records of personnel, Data (as defined in P-37 section 9.1) and other information relating
to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Contractor" includes
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Contractor in 1.3 of P-37.

.10. Independent Audit. 'Ihe Contractor shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public



Accountant (CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State may require, for any part of the
project upon demand. Monies required for payment ofthe audit shall be set aside in the
Contract Budget for that specific purpose.

.10.1. In the event the audit reveals that monies are due and owing to the State from the
Contractor, for whatever reasons, the Contractor shall pay to the State such sums
within thirty (30) days of the audit date.

.1). The Contractor shall submit quarterly performance, drug and alcohol, and charter activity
reports within 30 days of the end of each quarter and shall submit any forms. Information
or reports required by the State to complete the FTA's National Transit Database (NTD)
reporting.

A.IO. Amend P-37 by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY" as Section
27:

27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPERTY, The following terms and
conditions apply to all equipment and real property purchased in whole or in part with
ftinds provided through this or other Agreements between the Stale and the Contractor:

a. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular
4220.1 F and future amendments, and with Buy America requirements, 49 CFR Parts
661 and 663.

b. All vehicles shall be purchased by the Slate, unless the Contractor has received prior
approval from the State to procure vehicles.

c. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be
purchased by the Contractor subject to the prior approval of the State.

d. Title to all project equipment shall be in the name of the Contractor; provided,
however, that in order to secure the complete performance of this Agreement, the
Contractor shall give the State a security interest in all such equipment at the time of
purchase and shall execute financing statements and do all other acts necessary or
useful to the perfection of that interest and the renewal thereof. In connection with the
purchase of any motor vehicles pursuant to this Agreement, the Contractor shall give
the State a security interest in the motor vehicles at the time of purchase and shall take
all steps necessary to protect the State's security interest, including taking steps to
identify the State as a lien holder of such motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

e. In the event that this agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property
becomes the property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to
such equipment shall be transferred to the State as soon as feasible. Project equipment
will be disposed of in accordance with FTA Circular 9040.10, and the State
Management Plan.

A.Il. Amend P-37 by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Contractor shall maintain a current inventory
listing of all nonexpendable property involved in this Agreement. The Contract shall



submit to the Stale a certification that the equipment is still being used in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement. The inventory listing and equipment certification shall
be supplied to the State by each year, generally by June 30'^

A.12. Amend P-37 by adding "EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:

29. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. Contractor shall be responsible for the maintenance
and repair of all equipment used in the service described in Exhibit D. Contractor
shall maintain all such equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safet>', and
mechanical soundness. The contractor shall certify that a proper maintenance plan
that meets or exceeds the original equipment manufacturers preventive
maintenance guidelines is followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must be approved
by the Board of Directors. All maintenance, repair and physical improvement
activities on equipment shall be conducted by the Contractor and at a location
specified by the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the State of any changes in
this location. The Contractor further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any
physical improvement to equipment as requested by the State. The Slate, FTA
and/or their designees shall have the right to conduct periodic inspections for the
purpose of confirming proper maintenance and repair.

A.13. Amend P-37 by adding "REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS" as section 30:

30. REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. The Contractor shall maintain a complete and
up to date record of all motor vehicle repairs, and shall make such records available to
the State and FTA upon demand.

A.14. Amend P-37 by adding "VEHICLE STORAGE" as section 31:

31. VEHICLE STORAGE. With respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or part
under this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement, the Contractor shall park or
garage each vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safely for each
vehicle. The Contractor shall also ensure that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in
such a manner that its daily operations are not impaired or curtailed by conditions of
weather or any other circumstances. The Contractor shall notify the State of the location
of the garaging site and any relocation.

A.I5. Amend P-37 by adding "TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW" as section 32:

32. TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. The Stale may require participation in training
courses determined to be essential to FTA program management in this contract period
and may require participation in such training programs as it deems necessary by drivers
and other employees involved in the transportation of the public. Training may include
defensive driving, passenger assistance, emergency procedures and periodic refresher
training every three (3) years. The Contractor agrees that the State shall have the right to
review the performance of all drivers who are employed in connection with this
Agreement, and to disallow the use of any driver whose performance as a driver is
determined to be un.satisfactory by the State.

A.I6. Amend P-37 by adding "SAFETY REQUIREMENTS" as section 33:



33. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. Al! project equipment shall be inspected and certified
by the Department of Safety, and shall meet all applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations as required by the United Slates
Department of Transportation, and by the New Hampshire Department of Safety under
RSA 266:72-a, in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.

The Contractor shall provide the State with full and prompt written notification of any
accident involving any vehicle used in its services. In addition, the Contractor shall be
responsible to report any accident in compliance with State law.

The Contractor shall submit to the State by February 15 of each year a report covering
the previous year (January 1 through December 31), summarizing the results of Its

alcohol misuse prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall
be in compliance with 49 CFR Part 655.

The Contractor shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA*s Transit Asset

Management or Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposes as required by
NHDOT for compliance purposes.

A.17. Amend P-37 by adding ""SERVICE LIMITATIONS" as section 34;

34. SERVICE LIMITATIONS. The Contractor shall not engage in the provision of
transportation services other than those described in Exhibit A, or outside the service area
described in Exhibit A, without the written consent of the State and without obtaining the
appropriate operating authority. The Contractor shall not engage in charter or school bus
operations except as permitted by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605, respectively.

A.I8. Amend P-37 by adding "CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS" as section 35:

35. CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS. Contractor warrants that with respect to the
Services to be performed, it has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals which are
required by any law, order or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may
be necessary for the performance of the Services hereunder. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform such Services, and
shall be properly licensed and authorized to perform such Services under all applicable
laws.

A.I9. Amend P-37 by adding "LABOR PROVISIONS" as section 36:

36. LABOR PROVISIONS. The Contractor agrees to adhere to the terms and conditions of
the Unified Protective Arrangement, Section 533(b) of 49 USC 53 or as amended,
incorporated herein for the protection of the employees of any employer providing
transportation services assisted by this Agreement, and the employees of any other
surface transportation providers in the transportation service area identified in Exhibit A.

A.20. Amend P-37 by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 37:

37. PATENT RIGHTS, if any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Contractor is
conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this Contract,
which invention, improvement or discovery may be patentabic under the laws of the
United Slates or any foreign country, the Contractor shall immediately notify the State



and provide a delailcd report. The rights and responsibilities of the Contractor and the
State with respect to such invention. Improvement, or discovery will be determined in
accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies and any waiver thereof.

A.2I. Amend P-37 by adding "BROKEEIAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 38:

38. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Contractor warrants that it has not

employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working
solely for the Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or
agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely
for the Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other
consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.
For breach or violation of this warranty, the State shall have the right to annul this
Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or
consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage,
brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.

Rev 4/26/21



VNA @ HCS, Inc.
EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. The Contractor, VNA @ HCS, Inc.., (hereinafter the "Contractor") shall provide the
following public transit service(s)

2. Fixed route, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in the City
of Kecne region, as detailed in the "Project Description" of the Contractor's application
to the New Hampshire Department of Transportation, Bureau of Rail and Transit
(hereinafter "NHDOT') for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 531 1 funding,
including a map of service areas and fare structure.

3. The following terms and conditions apply to all of the public transit services provided by
Contractor pursuant to this agreement;

a. The Commissioner of the Department of Transportation or the Commissioner's
designce (hereinafter the "Commissioner") may require the Contractor to provide
additional transportation services or to reduce transportation services provided
under this contract. Any alterations to such transportation services shall be
submitted in writing by the Commissioner to the Contractor. The Contractor shall
implement the alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different timeftame is
agreed to by the Commissioner and the Contractor.

b. The Contractor may request to revise transportation services, as submitted in the
Contractor's grant application to the NHDOT, to add, reduce, or adjust
transportation services provided under this contract. Any alterations to such
transportation services, including alterations for the provision of service to .special
events, shall be requested in writing by the Contractor to the Commissioner for
approval at least 30 days in advance. Revisions subject to a public comment
period shall be requested at least 60 days in advance. Upon approval of the
Commissioner, the Contractor shall implement any alterations within thirty (30)
days unless a different timeframe is agreed to by the Commissioner and the
Contractor.

c. The Contractor shall not change, add, or delete any route or make any fare,
service or operating schedule adjustments without the prior written agreement of
the Commissioner, except in an emergency situation, in which case the Contractor
shall notify the Commissionerno later than the next working day following the
day of such changes. Such emergency changes will be valid for a maximum of
five days; thereafter, the written approval of the Commissioner shall be required
to continue such emergency changes.

d. All project vehicles, including those Federally-funded vehicles outlined in Exhibit
D, Project Equipment, as identified by their Vehicle Identification Numbers, as
well as any additional vehicles utilized for the project, shall be used in accordance
with all applicable Federal and State laws as well as NHDOT requirements.



4. The following terms and conditions apply to State Operating funds:

a. Stale operating matching funds shall be used to provide a portion of the non-Federal
Funds required to match Federal Transit Administration (FTA)operating funds for
public transportation services provided by the Contractor and as further detailed on
the Contractor's website.



1.

VNA@HCS,lnc.
EXHIBIT C

BUDGET

The Contract price, as defined In Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, is the FTA Section
5311 portion of the eligible project costs as well as State Operating ftinds. Federal funds are
granted as follows:

SFY 2022 SFY 2023

FTA Section 5311

Administration $150,400.00 $142,500.00

Capital Preventive Maintenance $19,100.00 $18,000.00

Capital ADA $17,300.00 $16,400.00

Operating $151,800.00 $118,700.00

Total Federal Funds $338,600.00 $295,600.00

State Operating Match $8,696.00 $8,696.00

Total Contract Funds $347,296.00 $304,296.00

Total Two-Year Contract Funds $651392.00

a. Funds are contingent upon Federal and State appropriations.

2. Not less than fourteen days prior to the submission of the Contractor's first request for FTA
Section 5311 reimbursement, the Contractor shall submit to the Commissioner a budget
incorporating all funds to be expended in the provision of services pursuant to this contract.
Budget revisions may be made with written approval of the Commissioner. Budget revisions
may only request the transfer of ftinds within a category or between categories with the same
matching ratio.

3. Reimbursement of state operating ftinds shall be requested via monthly invoices until
operating funds are fiilly expended.

4. The Contractor's submitted invoices shall indicate the month(s) for which the state operating
matching funds are being applied, the amount of FTA funds the state operating matching
ftinds are leveraging, and the FTA grant program from which the Contractor will draw down
the FTA funds.

5. The Contractor may seek reimbursement only for eligible expenses listed in the budget and
detail-of-cost form provided by the State, with the exception of funds specifically reserved, if
any, and identified in "Specifically Programmed Funds," at the end of this Exhibit"!

6. At the sole discretion of the Commissioner, the Contractor may carry forward any
unexpended portion of the federal funds included in the Contract Price to a subsequent
contract, if any, between the State and the Contractor.



Transit Vehicles: 8

VNA @ HCS, INC.
EXHIBIT D

VEHICLE LIST

2009 FreiRhtliner Sprinter WDYPF4AC995428425

2013 Ford Advantage Bus 16&2 1FDFE4FS2DDB28889

2013 Freightliner Sprinter WDPPF4CC5D5783i82

2016 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenger Bus iFDFE4FS3GDC5666i

2016 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenger Bus IFDFE4FS4GDC56670

2016 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenger Bus 1FDFE4FS5GDC56662

2017 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenger IFDFE4FS3HDC33480

2017 Ford E450 16 & 2 Passenger 1FDFE4FS7HDC33479



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that VNA AT HCS, INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 18, 1981.1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 67798

Certificate Number: 0005364445
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 7th day of May A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

'■ ! Julie Greenwood . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of VNA at HCS.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Mav 13.2020. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date) .

VOTED: That Maura McQueenev. CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of VNA at HCS to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
alt such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 5/6/2021

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Julie E. Greenwood
Title: Chair of the Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MHUDOrrYYV)

4/20/2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the torms and conditions of the policy, ceitain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
thb certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementCs).

PROOUCER

Berkshire Insurance Group, Inc
PO Box 4889
Pittsfleld, MA 01202

Maureen Cormier

Duetto. Eit): (866)636-0244 wc,no):(413) 447-1977

MSURERfS) AFFOROmO COVERAGE HAICa

WSURER A Phlladelohla Indemnity Insurance Comoanv 18058

INSURED

Home Healthcare Hospice & Community Services, Inc.
312 Marlboro Street

PO 80x564

Keene, NH 03431

INSURER B ATLANTIC CHARTER INSURANCE GROUP

P4SURERC

MSURER 0

MSURERE

WSURERF

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONOITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONOmONS OF SUCH POUCIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

WSR

LTR TYPE OF RtSURANCE
ADOL

mo
SU8R

WYD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

fMM/DOnrVYYI
POLICY EXP
fMMrtXVYYYYl LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL OtJtERAL LiABIUTY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR PHPK2223207 1/4/2021 1/4/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE ,  1,000,000
CLAIUSJtlAC DAMAGE TO RENTED ,  100,000

MED CXP (Anv one oereon) ,  6,000

PERSONAL a AOV INJURY
^  1,000,000

GEtn. AOOREGATE LIMn APPLIES PER: GENERAL A6GRFGATF
,  3,000,000

X poucy| 1 |loc
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG ,  3,000,000

S

A AUT0MK»LS UABBJTY

PHPK2223202 1/4/2021 1/4/2022

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT ,  i,ooo.r
X ANYAirTO

JIEDULED
T08

BODILY INJURY (Per oerMnt t
OVWIEO
AUTOS ONLY

!i!{I%ONLY

a BODILY INJURY (Per eeddMit) $

Iff f^OP^^TAMAGE
s

!

A X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LWe

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE PHUB752148 1/4/2021 1/4/2022

EACH OCCURRENCE ,  4,000,000

AGGREGATE
,  4,666.666
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CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department of Transportation
7 Nazen Drive

PO Box 483

Concord. NH 03302-0483

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPfftATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESeHTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) e 1986-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All tights reserved.
The ACORD name end logo are registered marts of ACORD



Certitlcalions and Assurances Fiscal Year 2021

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2021 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA

ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Ceilifications and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name ofApplicant:. VlSfA.a.t.H.C-5.....
The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions ofcategories 01-21. j/

Or,

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions ofthe categories it has selected:

Category Certincation

01 Certifications and Assurances Required of Every Applicant

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilot Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission

Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2021

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

0  State ofGood Repair Grants

14 Infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

17 Demand Responsive Service

18 Interest and Financing Costs

19 Construction Hiring Preferences

20 Cybersecuri^ Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations

21 Tribal Transit Programs

FEDERAL FISCAl. YEAR 2021 FT A CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE

page

O^cqinrcdofal) Applicanls for fcdcia) assistance to be awtudedby FTA in FY 2021)

AFFIRMATION OF APPLICANT

Nome ofihe Applicnra;

BY SIGNING BELOW, on behalforthc Applicani, I declare ihal it has duly authorized me lo mate these
Ccrtificotinns mi Assurances nnti IwkI its compliance. Thm, it agrees in amply with nil fedosil Imvs, regiituliuns,
and mqutrcmenis. follow applictdilc federal guidance, and comply with (Ik Ccrtificaiions and Assurances ts
indicated on Ihc foregoinQ page applicable to each application its Authorized Representative mates to the Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) In federai fiscal year 2021, irrespective ofwhcthcrthc individual (hot ocicdon his ur
her Applicaru's behalf continues to rcprcsctil it

FTA intends (hut (he Ccnincuilons und Assurances (he Applicunl seKxls en the other ̂  ofihis document
should apply to cadi Award fur which it now sccls, or muy Liter seek federal ussisUince to be nwnrdcd during
fcdcml fiscal year 2{QI.

The Applicani afllrms (he truthfulness and accuracy ofthe Ccrtiftcalicns and Assurances it has selected In the

stotcmcnLs suhmiticd wiili this dncumcnt and try other .submission made to Ff A and acknowledges that the
Prngrant Fraud Gvil Remedies Act of 19X6, .11 (LRC §.Vm etseq.. and iniplcincnting ILS. (X)T legidniinns,
"Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 CFR part 21, apply to any ccrtificalion. assurance ur submissioo made to



Certifications and Assurances Fiscal Year 2021

The criminal provuioas of 18 (J.S.C $ i(ini apply m any certincaiion, asunincc, or whntufflon made in
connection wth a federal public transportation program auhorized by 49 U.S.C chapter S or other

In signing this (locunent, I declare under |
any other; ofihe

Signature:

tvlamc: ■6-

ies ofpcijury that the Ibregoing Certihcations and Assuitnces, ml
Applicani ne true and accurate.

Dnte: ^ ^ O ̂  /

Authorized Representative ofApplicara 657



FFY 2021 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2021 Master Agreement

requires recipients and subrecipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

I acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2021 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of tlie
agreement.

\/NA nt Hr^ ^ ̂  ̂  /
Name of Agency Date

Name of Authorized Official | Signature
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Office of Labor-Manafemgnt Standards

Special Warranty Arrangement

For Application to Other Than Urbanized and Over-the-Road Bus Accessibility

Projects

PURSUANT TO SECTION 5333(b) OF

TITLE 49 OF THE U^. CODE. CHAPTER 53

Januarys, 20li

The following language shall be made part of the contract of assistance by reference in the Federal Transit Administration's Master

Agreement as signed by the grantee:

The terms and conditions set forth below shall apply for the protection of the transportation^related employees in the
transportation service area of the Project. As a precondition of the release of assistance by the Grantee/State Agency to any

Recipient under the grant, the Grantee shall bind the Recipient to these obligations by incorporating this arrangement Into the
contract of assistance between the Grantee and the Redpient(s). by reference. If a Grantee foils to comply with the terms of the
Warranty and foils to bind a Recipient as a precondition to the release of funds, theGranteewillbea guarantor of the required
protections and the Grantee will be required to act as if It were the Recipient of funds unless and until the Grantee is able to secure

the retroactive agreement of the Recipient to be bound by the terms of the Warranty.

These protective arrangements are intended for the benefit of transit employees In the service area of the project, who are
considered as third-party beneficiaries to the employee protective arrangements incorporated by referenced in the grant contract
between the U.S. Department of Transportation and the Grantee, and the parties to the contract so signify by executing that
contract Transit employees are also third party beneficiaries to the protective arrangements ina>rporated in subsequent contracts

of assistance between the Grantee and any Recipient. Employees, or their representative, may assert claims with respect to the
protective arrangements under tfiis provision. This clause creates no Independent cause of action against the United States
Government.

The term "service area," as used herein, Includes the geographic area over which the Project Is operated and the area whose
population is served by the Project, including adjacent areas affected by the Project. The term "Union," as used herein, shall refer to
any labor organization representing employees providing public transportation services In the service area of a Project assisted
under the grant The term "employee," as used fierein, shall include individuals who may or may not be represented by a Union.
The term "Recipient," as used herein, shall refer to any empioyerfs) receiving transportation assistance under the grant. The term
"Grantee," as used herein, shall refer to theapplicant for assistance; a Grantee which receives assistance isalso a Recipient

Where the Department of Labor (the Department) deems It necessary to modify the requirementsof this Special Warranty
Arrangement so that a particular Grantee or Recipient can continue to satisfy the requirements of the statute, the Department will
Issuea supplementary certification letter setting forth the alternative provisions to be included In the contract of assistance
between the Grantee and FTA, by reference. These terms will be made binding upon the particular Grantee or Recipient, along with
these terms and conditions, for each subsequent grant of assistance until withdrawn in writing by the OepartmenL

(1) The Project shall be carried out In such a manner and upon such terms and conditions as will not adversely affect employees of
the Recipient and of any other surface public transportation provider in the transportation service area of the Project. It shall be an
obligation of the Recipient to assure that any and all transportation services assisted by the Project are contracted for and operated
in such a manner that they do not impair the rights and interests of affected employees. The term "ProjecC as used herein, shall
not be limited to the particular facility, service, or operation assisted by Federal funds, but shall include any changes, whether

organizational, operational, technological, or otherwise, which are a result of the assistance provided. The phrase "as a result of the
Project," shall, when used in this arrangement, include events related to the Project occurring in anticipation of, during, and
subsequent to the Project and any program of efficiencies or economies related thereto; provided, however, that volume rises and
falls of business, or changes in volume and characterofemployment brought about solely by causes other than the Project
(includingany economies or efficiencies unrelated to the Project) are not within the purview of this arrangemenL

An employee covered by this arrangement, whois not dismissed, displaced or otherwrise worsened in his/her position with regard

to employment as a result of the Project, but who is dismissed, displaced or otherwise worsened solely because of the total or
panlal terminadon of the Project or exhaustion of Project funding shall not be deemed elipble for a dismissal or displacement

allowance within the meaning of paragraphs (6) and (7) of this arrangemenL



(2) VVheie employees of a Reciptent are represented for collective bargaining purposes, all Project services provided by that
Recipient shall be provided under and in accordance with any collective bargaining agreement applicable to such employees which
is then in effect. This Arrangement does not create any collective bargaining relationship where one does not already exist or
between any Recipient and the employees of another employer. Where the Recipient has no collective bargaining relationship with
the Unions representing employees in the service area, the Recipient will not take any action which impairs or interferes with the
rights, privileges, and benefits and/or the preservation or continuation of the collective bargaining rights of such employees.

(3) All rights, privileges, and benefits (including pension rights and beneTils) of employees covered by this arrangement (including
employees having already retired) under easting collective bargaining agreements or otherwise, or under any revision or renewal
thereof, shall be preserved and continued; provided, however, that such rights, privileges ar>d benefits which are not foreclosed
from further bargaining under applicable law or contract may be modified by collective bargaining and agreement by the Recipient
and the Union Involved to substitute other rights, privileges and benefits. Unless otherwise provided, nothing in this arrangement
shall be deemed to restrict any rights the Recipient may otherwise have to direct the working forces and manage its business as it
deemed best. In accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement.

(4) The collective bargaining rights of employees covered by this arrangement, including the right to arbitrate labor disputes and to
maintain union security and checkoff arrangements, as provided by applicable laws, policies and/or existing coilealve bargaining
agreements, shall be preserved and continued. Provided, however, thai this provision shall not be Interpreted so as to require the
Recipient to retain any such rights which exist by virtue of a collective bargaining agreement after such agreement is no longer in
effect.

The Recipient agrees that It will bargain collectively with the Union or otherwise arrange for the continuation of collective
bargaining, and that it will enter into agreements with the Union or arrange for such agreements to be entered into, relative to all

subjects which are or may be proper subjects of collective bargaining. If, at any time, applicable law or contracts permit or grant to
employees covered by this arrangement the right to utilize any economic measures, nothing in this arrangement shall be deemed
to foreclose the exercise of such right.

(S}(a) The Recipient shall provide to all affected employees sixty (60) days' notice of intended actions which may result in

displacements or dismissals or rearrangements of the working forcesasa result of the Project In the case of employees
represented by a Union, such notice shall be provided by certified mail through their representatives. The notice shall contain a full
and adequate statement of the proposed changes, and an estimateof the number of employees affected by the intended changes,
and the number and classifications of any jobs within the jurisdiction and control of the Recipient, including those in the

employment ol any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21), available to be filled by such affected employees.

(5)(b} The procedures of this subparagraph shall apply to cases where notices involve employees represented by a Union for
collective bargaining purposes. At the request of either the Recipient or the representatives of such employees, negotiations for the
purposes ol reaching agreement with respect to the application of the terms and conditions of this arrangement shall commence
immediately. These negotiations shall include determining the selection of forces from among the mass transportation employees
who may be affected as a result of the Project, to establish which such employees shall be offered employment for which they are
qualified or can be trained. If no agreement is reached within twenty (20) days from the commencement of negotiations, any party
to the dispute may submit the matter to dispute settlement procedures In accordarxe with paragraph (15) of this arrangement.
Unless the parties otherwise mutually agree in writing, no change in operations, services, fadlities or equipment within the
purview of this paragraph (5) shall occur until after either 1) an agreement with respect to the application of the terms and

conditions of this arrangement to the intended change(s) is reached; 2) the decision of the arbitrator has been rendered pursuant
to this subparagraph (b); or 3) an arbitrator selected pursuant to Paragraph (15) of this arrangement determines that the intended
change(s) may be instituted prior to the finalization of implementing arrangements.

(S)(c) In the event of a dispute as to whether an intended change twlthin the purview of this paragraph (S) rriay be insliluted at the
end of the 60-day notice period and before an Implementing agreement is reached or a final arbitration decision is rendered

pursuant to subparagraph (b). any involved party may immediately submit that issue to arbitration under paragraph (15) of this
arrangement, in any such arbitration, the arbitrator shall rely upon the standards and criteria utilized by the Surface Transportation
Board (and its predecessor agency, the Interstate Commerce Commission) to address the 'preconsummalion' issue in cases

involving employee protections pursuant to 49 U.S.C. Section 11326 (or its predecessor. Section 5(2)(f) of the Interstate Commerce

Act, as amended). If the Recipient demonstrates, as a threshold matter In any such arbitration, that the Intended action is a
trackage rights, lease proceeding or similar transaction, and not a merger, acquisition, consolidation, or other similar transaction,
the burden shall then shift to the involved labor organization(s] to prove that under the standards and criteria referenced above,
the intended action should not be permitted to be instituted prior to the effective dateof a negotiated or arbitrated implementing
agreement if the Recipient fails to demonstrate that the intended action is a trackage rights, lease proceeding, or similar
transaction, it shall be the burden of ihe Recipient to prove that under the standards and criteria referenced above, the intended
action should be permitted to be instituted prior to the effective date of a negotiated or arbitrated implementing agreement. For
purposes of any such arbitration, the time period within which the parties are to respond to the list of potential arbitrators



submitted t}y the American Arbitration Association Service shall be live (5) days, the notice of hearing may be given orally or by
facsimile, the hearing will be held promptly, the award of the arbitrator shall be rendered promptly and, unless otherwise agreed to

by the parties, no later than fourteen (14) days from the date of closing the hearings, with five (5) additional days for mailing if
posthcaiing briefs are requested by either party. The intended change shall not be instituted during the pendency of any
arbitration proceedings under this subparagraph (c).

(5)(d) If an intended change within the purview of this paragraph (5) is instituted before an implementing agreement is reached or a
final arbitration decision is rendered pursuant to subparagraph (b), all employees affected shall be kept financially whole, as if the

noticed and implemented action has not taken place, from the time they are affected until the effective date of an Implementing
agreement or final arbitration decision. This protection shall be in addition to the protective period defined in paragraph (14) of this
arrangement, which period shall begin on the effective date of the implementing agreement or final arbitration decision rendered
pursuant to subparagraph (b).

An employee selecting, bidding on, or hired to fill any position established as a result of a noticed and Implemented action prior to

the consummation of an implementing agreement or final arbitration decision shall accumulate no benefits under this

arrangement as a result thereof during that period prior to the consummation of an implementing agreement or final arbitration
decision pursuant to subparagraph (b).

(6)(a) Whenever an employee, retained in service, recalled to service, or employed by the Recipient pursuant to paragraphs (5). (7)
(e), or (18) hereof is placed in a worse position with respect to compensation as a result of the Project, the employee shall be
considered a "displaced employee" and shall be paid a ntonthiy 'displacement allowance" to be determined in accordance with

this paragraph. Said displacement allowance shall be paid each displaced employee during the protective period so long as the
employee is unable, in the exercise of his/her seniority rights, to obtain a position producing compensation equal to or exceeding
the compensation the employee received in the position from which the employee was displaced, adjusted to reflect subsequent
general wage adjustments, including cost of living adjustments where provided for.

(6)(b) The displacement allowance shall be a monthly allowance determined by computing the total compensation received by the
employee, including vacation allowances artd monthly compensation guarantees, and his/her total dme paid for during the last
twelve (12) months in which the employee performed a>mpensated service more than fifty pet centum of each such months, based

upon the employee's normal work xhedule, immediately preceding the date of his/her displacement as a result of the Project, and
by dividing separately the total compensation artd the total time paid for by twelve, thereby producing the average monthly
compensation and the average monthly time paid for. Such allowance shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent gerteral wage
adjustments, including cost of living adjustments where provided for. if the displaced employee's compensation in his/her current
position is less in any month during his/her protective period than the aforesaid average compensation (adjusted to reflect
subsequent general wage adjustments, including cost of living adjustments where provided for), the employee shall be paid the

difference, less compensation fbrany time lost on account of voluntary absences to the extent that the employee is not available

for service equivalent to his/her average monthly time, but the employee shall be compensated in addition thereto at the rate of

(he current position for any time worked in excess of the average monthly time paid for. if a displaced employee falls to exercise
his/her seniority rights to secure arwther position to which the employee is entitled under the then existing collective bargaining
agreement, and which carrfesa wage rate and compensation exceeding that of the position which the employee elects to retain,
(he employee shall thereafter be treated, for the purposes of this paragraph, as occupying the position the employee elects to
decline.

(6)(c} The displacement allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period in the event of the displaced

employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause In accordance with any labor agreement applicable to hiVher
employment.

(7)(a} Wfienever any employee is laid off or othervrise deprived of employment as a result of the Project, in aaordance with any

collective bargaining agreement applicable to his/her employment, the employee shall be considered a "dismissed employee" and
shall be paid a monthly dismissal allowarKe to be determined in accordance with this paragraph. Said dismissal allowance shall
first be paid each dismissed employee on the thirtieth (30th) day following the day on which the employee is "dismissed* and shall
continue during the protective period, as follow:

Employee's length of service '

Prior to advPfSP effprt PPfiod nf nfT>n>nion

1 day to G years equivalent period

6 years or more G years

The monthly dismissal allowance shall be equivalent to one-twelfth (l/12th) of the total compensation received by the erhployce in

the last twelve (12) months of his/her employment in which the employee performed comper^sation service more iftan fifty per
centum of each such month based on the employee's normal work schedule to the date on which the employee was first deprived



of employment as a result of the Project. Such allowance shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage adjustments,

including cost of living adjustments where provided for.

(7Kb] An employee shall be regarded as deprived of employment and entitled to a dismissal allowance when the position the
employee holds is abolished as a result of the Project, or when the position the employee holds Is not abolished but the employee
loses that position as a result of the exercise of seniority rights by an employee whose position is abolished asa result of the Project
or as a result of the exercise of seniority rights by other employees brought about as a result of the Project, and the employee is

unable to obtain another position, either by the exercise of the employee's seniority rights, or through the ftecipient, in accordance
with subparagraph (e}. In the absence of proper notice followed by an agreement or decision pursuant to paragraph (5) hereof, no

employee who has been deprived of employment as a result of the Project shall be required to exercise his/her seniority rights to
secure another position in order to qualify for a dismissal allowance hereunder.

(7)(c} £ach employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall keep the Recipient informed as to his/her current address and the

current name and address of any other person by whom the employee may be regularly etnployed, or if the employee is self-

employed.

(7)(d) The dismissal allowance shall be paid to the regularly assigned incumbent of the position abolished, if the position of an

employee is abolished when the employee is absent from service, the employee will be entitled to the dismissal allowance when

the employee is available for service. The employee temporarily filling said position at the time it was abolished will be given a
dismissal allowance on the basis of that position, until the regular employee is available for service, and thereafter shall revert to

the employee's previous status and will be given the protections of the agreement in said position, if any are due him/her.

(7)(e) An employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall be subject to call to return to service by the employee's former employer;

notification shall be in accordance with the terms of the then-existing collective bargaining agreement if the employee is

represented by a union. Prior to such call to return to work by his/her employer, the employee may be required by the Recipient to

accept reasonably comparable employment for which the employee is physically and mentally qualified, or for which the employee

can become qualified after a reasonable training or retraining period, provided it does not require a change in residence or infringe
upon the employment rights of other employees under then-existing collective bargaining agreements.

(7)(f) When an employee who is receiving a dismissal allowance again commences employment in accordance with subparagraph

(e) above, said allowance shall cease while the employee is so reemployed, and the period of time during whicfi the employee is so
reemployed shad be deducted from the total period for which the employee Is entitled to receive a dismissal allowance. During the
time of such reemployment, the employee shall be entitled to the protections of this arrangement to the extent they are applicable.

{7)(g) The dismissal allowance of any employee who is otherwise employed shall be reduced to the extent that the employee's

combined monthly earnings from such other employment or self-employment, any benefits received from any unemployment

insurance law, and his/her dismissal allowance exceed the amount upon which the employee's dismissal allowance is based. Such

employee, or his/her union representative, and the Recipient shall agree upon a procedure by which the Reci;Ment shall be kept
currenify informed of the earnings of such employeein employment other than with the employee's former employer, including
self-employment, and the benefits received.

(7)(h) The dismissal allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period in the event of the failure of the employee

without good cause to return to service in accordance with the applicable labor agreement, or to accept employment as provided

under subparagraph (e) above, or in the event of the employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause in

accordance with any labor agreement applicable to his/her employment.

{7)(i) A dismissed employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall actively seek and not refuse other reasonably comparable
employment offered him/her tor which the employee is physically and mentally qualified and does not require a change in the

employee's place of residence. Failure of the dismissed employee to comply with this obligation shall be grounds for
discontinuance of the employee's allowance; provided that said dismissal allowance shall not be discontinued uniil final

determination is made either by agreement between the Recipient and the employee or his/her representative, or by final
arbitration decision rendered in accordance with paragraph (15) of this arrangement that such employee did not comply with this

obligation.

(S) In determining length of service of a displaced or dismissed employee for purposes of this arrangement, such employee shall be
given full service credits in accordance with the records and labor agreements applicable to him/her and the employee shall be

given additional service credits for each month in which the employee receives a dismissal or displacement allowance as if the

employee were continuing to perform services in his/her former position.

(9) No employee shall be entitled to either a displacement or dismissal allowance under paragraphs (6) or (7) hereof because of the
abolishment of a position to which, at some future time, the employee could have bid, been transferred, or promoted.



(10) No employee rcceivinga dismissal or displacement allowance shall be deprived, during the employee's protected period, ol
any righu, privileges, or benefits attaching to his/her employment. Including, without limitation, group life insurance,
hospital!zation and medical care, free transportation for the employee and the employee's family, sick leave, continued status and
participation under anydisabilityor retirement program, and such other employee benefits as Railroad Retirement, Social Security,
Workmen's Compensation, and unemployment compensation, as well as any other benefits to which the employee may be entitled
under the same conditions and so long as such benefits continue to be accorded to other employees of the bargaining unit, in
active service or furloughed as the case may be.

{ll)(a) Any employee cwered by this arrangement who Is retained in the service of his/her employer, or who Is later restored to
service after being entitled to receive a dismissal allowance, and who is required to change the point of his/her employment in
order to retain or secure active employment with the Recipient in accordance with this arrangement, and who is required to move
his/her place of residence, shall be reimbursed for all expenses of moving his/her household and other personal effeqts, for the

traveling expenses for the employee and members of the employee's immediate family, including living expenses for the employee
and the employee's Immediate family, and for his/her own actual wage loss during the time necessary for such transfer and for a

reasonable time thereafter, not to exceed five (5) working days. The exact extent of the responsibility of the Recipient under this
paragraph, and the ways and means of transportation, shall be agreed upon in advance between the Recipient and the affected
employee or the employee's representatives.

(1 l)(b) If any such employee Is laid off within three (3) years after chan^ng his/her point of employment in accordance with
paragraph (a) hereof, and elects to move his/her place of residence back to the original point of employment, the Recipient shall
assume the expenses, losses and costs of moving to the same extent provided in subparagraph (a) of this paragraph (11) and
paragraph (I2)(a} hereof.

(1 l)(c) No claim for reimbursement shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph unless such claim is presented to the
Recipient in writing within ninety (90) days after the date on which the expenses were incurred.

(11)(d) Except as otherwise provided In subparagraph (b), changes In place of residence, subsequent to the IniUal changes as a
result of the Project, which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of seniority rights, shall not be
considered within the purview of this paragraph.

(12)(a) The following cortdltions shall apply to the extent they are applicable in each Instance to any employee who is retained in
the service of the employer (or who is later restored to service after being entitled to receive a dismissal allowance), who is required
to change the point of his/her employment as a result of the Project, and is thereby required to move his/her place of residence.

If the employee Is under a contract to purchase his/her home, the Recipient shall protect the employee against loss under such
contract, and in addition, shall relieve the employee from any further obligation thereunder.

If the employee hoids an unexpired lease of a dwelling oaupied as the employee's home, the Recipient shall protect the employee
from all loss and cost in securing the cancellation of said lease.

(12)(b) No claim for loss shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph unless such claim Is presented to the Recipient In
writing within one year after the effective date of the change in residence.

(12)(c) Should a controversy arise in respect to the value of the home, the loss sustained in its sale, the loss under a contract for

purchase, loss and cost In securing termination of a lease, or any other question In connection with these matters. It shall be
decided through a joint conference between the employee, or his/her union, and the Recipient In the event they are unable to
agree, the dispute or controversy may be referred by (he Recipient or the union to a board of competent real estate appraisers
selected in the following manner: one (l) to be selected by the representatives of the employee, and one (l) by the Recipient, and
these two. if unable to agree within thirty (30) days upon the valuation, shall endeavor by agreement with ten (10) days thereafter
to select a third appraiser or to agree to a method by which a third appraiser shall be selected, and falling such agreement, either
party may request the State and local Board of Real Estate Commissioners to designate within ten (10) days a third appraiser,
whose designation will be binding upon the parties and whose jurisdiction shall be limited to determination of the issues raised In
this paragraph only. A decision of a majority of the appraisers shall be required and said decision shall be final, binding, and
conclusive. The compensation and expenses of the neutral appraiser Including expenses of the appraisal board, shall be borne
equally by the parties to the proceedings. Alt other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them, including the compensation
of the appraiser selected by such party.

(12)(d) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (ll)(b} hereof, changes in place of residence, subsequent to the initial changes as
a result of the Project, which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal exercise of seniority rights, shall not be



considered within the purview of this paragraph.

(12)(e] "Change in residence* means transfer to a work location which is either (A) outside a radius of twenty (20) miles of the
employee's former work location and farther from the employee's residence than was his/her former work location, or (B) Is more
than thirty (30) normal highway route miles from the employee's residence and also farther from his/her residence than was the

employee's former work location.

(13)(a) A dismissed employee entitled to protection under this arrangement may, at the employee's option within twenty-one (21)

days of his/her dismissal, resign and (in lieu of all other benefits and protections provided in this arrangement) accept a lump sum
payment computed in accordance with section (9) of the Washington Job Protection Agreement of May 1936:

Lenyth of Service Separation Allnwanrp

1 year and less than 2 years 3 months' pay

3''"""S"9*-

5-""-10"12"*

10 15*12""

15""overi2""

In the case of an employee with less than one year's service, five days' pay. computed by multiptying by 5 the normal daily earnings
(including regularly scheduled overtime, but excluding other overtime payments) received by the employee in the position last

occupied, for each month in whkh the employee performed service, will be paid as the lump sum.

Length of service shall be computed as provided in Section 7(b) of the Washington Job Protection Agreement, as follows:

For the purposes of this arrangement, the length of service of the employee shall be determined from the date the employee last

acquired an employment status with the employing carrier and the employee shall be given credit for one month's service for each
month in which the employee performed any service (in any capacity whatsoever) and twelve (12) such months shall be credited as

one year's service. The employment status of an employee shall not be interrupted by furlough in instances where the employee
has a right to and does return to service when called, in determining length of service of an employee acting as an officer or other

official representative of an employee organization, the employee will be given credit for performing service while so engaged on
leave of absence from the service of a carrier.

(13)(b) One month's pay shall be computed by multiplying by 30 the normal daily earnings (Including regularly scheduled overtime,
but excluding other overtime payments) received by the employee in the position last occupied prior to time of the employee's
dismissal as a result of the Project.

(14) Whenever used herein, unless the context requires otherwise, the term "protective period" means that period of time during
which a displaced or dismissed employee is to be provided protection hereunder and extends from the date on which an employee
is displaced or dismissed to the expiration of six (6) years therefrom, provided, however, that the protective period for any

panicular employee during which the employee is entitled to receive the benefits of these provisions shall not continue for a longer
period following the date the employee was displaced or dismissed than the employee's length of service, as shown by the records
and labor agreements applicable to his/her employment prior to the date of the employee's displacement or dismissal.

(15)(a) In the event that employee(s) are represented by a Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the
interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this arrangement, not otherwise governed by paragraph 12(c). the
Labor-Management Relations Act. as amended, the Railway Labor Act, as amended, or by impasse resolution provisions in a
collective barpintng or protective arrangement involving the Recipient and the Union, which cannot be settled by the parties
thereto within thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any final and binding
disputes settlement procedure acceptable to the parties, in the event they cannot agree upon such procedure, the dispute, claim,
or grievance may be submitted at the written request of the Recipient or the Union to final and binding arbitration. Should the
parties be unable to agree upon the selection of a neutral arbitrator within ten (lO) days, any party may request the American
Arbitration Association to furnish, from among arbitrators who are then available to serve, five (5) arbitrators from which a neutral

arbitrator shall be selected. The parties shall, within five (S) days after the receipt of such list, determine by lot the order of
elimination and thereafter each shall, in that order, alternately eliminate one name until only one name remains. The remaining
person on the list shall be the neutral arbitrator. Unless otherwise provided, in the case of arbitration proceedings, under paragraph
(S) of this arrangement, the arbitration shall commerKe within fifteen (IS) days after selection or appointment of the neutral
arbitrator, and the decision shall be rendered within forty-five (45) days after the hearing of the dispute has been concluded and the

record closed. The decision shall be final ai>d binding. All the conditions of the arrangement shall continue to be effective during
the arbitration proceedings.



{I5](b| The compensation and expenses o/ the neutral arbitrator, and any other jointly incurred expenses, shall be borne equally by
the Unionls) and Recipient, and all other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them.

(15)(c) In the event that employee(s) are not represented by a Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the
interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this arrangement which cannot be settled by the Recipient and the
employee(s) within thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any final and
binding dispute settlement procedure acceptable to the parties, or In the event the parties cannot agree upon such a procedure,
the dispute or controversy may be referred to the Secretary of Labor for a Rnal and binding determination.

(15)|d) In the event ol any dispute as to whether ornot a particular employee was affected by the Project, it shall be the obligation
of the employeeor the representative of the employee to identify the Project and specify the pertinent facts of the Project relied
upon. It st\all then be the burden of the Recipient to prove that factors other than the Project affected the employee. The claiming
employee shall prevail If it Is established that the Project had an effect upon the employee even if other factors may also have
affected the employee. (See Hodgson's Affidavit in Civil Action No. 825-71).

(16) The Recipient will be financially responsible for the application of these conditions and will make the necessary arrangements
so that any employee covered by this arrangement may Pile a written claim of its violation, through the Union, or directly if the
employee Is outside the bargaining unit, with the Recipient within sixty (60) days of the date the employee Is terminated or laid off
as a result of the Project, or within eighteen (18) months of the date the employee's position with respect to his/her employment Is
otherwise worsened as a result of the Project In the latter case, if the events giving rise to the claim have occurred over an
extended period, the 18-month limitation shall be measured from the last such event. No benefits shall be payable for any period
prior to sbi (6) months from the date of the filing of any claim. Unless such claims are filed with the Recipient within said time
limitations, the Recipient shall thereafter be relieved of all liabilities and obligations related to the claim.

The Recipient will fully honor the claim, making appropriate payments, or will give notice to the claimant or his/her representative
of the basis for denying or modifying such claim, giving reasons therefore. If the Recipient fails to honor such claim, the Union or
non-bargaining unit employee may invoke the following procedures for further joint investigation of the claim by giving notice in
writing. Within ten (10) days from the receipt of such notice, the parties shall exchange such factual material as may be requested of
them relevant to the disposition of the claim and shall jointly take such steps as may be necessary or desirable to obtain from any
third party such additional factual materials as may be relevant. In the event the Recipient rejects the claim, the claim may be
processed to arbitration as hereinabove provided by paragraph (IS).

(17) Nothing in this arrangement shall be construed as depriving any employee of any rights or benefits which such employee may
have under existing employment or collective bargaining agreements or otherwise, provided that there shall be no duplication of
benefits to any employee, and, provided further, that any benefit under this arrangement shall be construed to Include the
conditions, responsibilities, and obligations accompanying such benefit. This arrangement shall not be deemed a waiver of any
rights of any Union or of any represented employee derived from any other agreement or provision of federal, state or local law.

(18) During the employee's protective period, a dismissed employee shall, if the employee so requests, in writing, be granted
priority of employment or reemployment to fill any vacant position within the jurisdiction and control of the Recipient reasonably
comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed, including those in the employment of any entity bound by this
arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21) herein, for which the employee is, or by trainingor retraining can become, qualified; not,
however. In contravention of collective bargaining agreements related thereto. In the event such employee requesU such training
or re-tralning to fill Such vacant position, the Recipient shall provide for such training or re-training at no cost to the employee. The
employee shall be paid the salary or hourly rate provided for in the applicable collective bargaining apaement or otherwise
established in personnel policies or practices for such position, plus any displacement allowance to which the employee may be
otherwise entitled. If such dismissed employee who has made such request falls, without good cause, within ten (10) days to accept
an offer of a position comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed for which the employee is qualified, or for which
the employee has satisfactorily completed such training, the employee shall, effective at the expiration of such ten-day period,
forfeit all rî ts and benefits under this arrangement.

As between employees who request employment pursuant to this paragraph, the following order where applicable shall prevail in
hiring such employees:

(a) Employees In the craft or class of the vacancy shall be given priority over employees without seniority in such craft or class;

(b) As between employees having seniority in the craft or class of the vacancy, the senior employees, based upon their service in
that craft or class, as shown on the appropriate seniority roster, shall prevail over junior employees:

(c) As between employees not having seniority in the craft or class of the vacancy, the senior employees, based upon their service in
the aaftsor classes in which they do have seniority as shown on the appropriate seniority rosters, shaii prevail over junior
employees. v



(19) The Recipient will post, in a prominent and accessible place, a notice stating that the Recipient has received lederal assistance

under the Federal Transit statute and has agreed to comply with the provisions of 49 U.S.C., Section S333(b). This notice shall also

specify the terms and conditions set forth herein lor the protection of employees. Tne ftecipient shall maintain and keep on file all

relevant books and records In sufficient detail as to provide the basic information necessary to the proper application,

administration, and enforcement of this arrangement and to the proper determination of any claims arising thereunder.

(20) In the event the Project is approved for assistance under the statute, the foregoing terms and conditions shall be made part of

the contract of assistance between the federal government and theapplicant for federal funds and between the applicant and any

recipient of federal funds; provided, however, that this arrangement shall not merge into the contract of assistance, but shall be

Independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereto, and by any covered employee or his/her representative, in

accordance with its terms, nor shall any other employee protective agreement merge into this arrangement, but each shall be

independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereto, In accordance with its terms.

(21) This arrangement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto, and no provisions, terms, or

obligations herein contained shall be affected, modified, altered, or changed In any respect whatsoever by reason of the

arrangements made by or for the Recipient to manage and operate the system.

Any person, enterprise, body, or agency, whether publicly • or privately-owned, which shall undertake the management, provision

and/or operation of the Project services or the Recipient's transit system, or any part or portion thereof, under contractual

arrangements of any form with the Recipient, its successors or assigns, shall agree to be bound by the terms of this arrangement

and accept the responsibility with the Recipient for full performance of these conditions. As a condition precedent to any such

contractual arrangements, the Recipient shall require such person, enterprise, body or agency to so agree.

(22) In the event of the acquisition, assisted with Federal funds, of any transportation system or services, or any part or portion

thereof, the employees of the acquired entity shall be assured employment, in comparable positions, within the jurisdiction and

control of the acquiring entity, including positions in the employment of any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to

paragraph (21). All persons employed under the provisions of this paragraph shall be appointed to such comparable positions

without examination, other than that required by applicable federal, state or federal law or collective bargaining agreement, and

shall be credited with their years of service for purposes of seniority, vacations, and pensions in accordance with the records of

their former employer and/or any applicable collective bargaining agreements.

(23) The employees covered by this arrangement shall condnue to receive any applicable coverage under Social Security, Railroad

Retirement, Workmen's Compensation, unemployment compensation, and the like. In no event shall these benefits be worsened

as a result of the Project

(24) In the event any provision of this arrangement is held to be invalid, or otherwise unenforceable under the federal, state, or

local law, in the context of a particular Project, the remaining provisions of this arrangement shall not be affected and the invalid or

unenforceable provision shall be renegotiated by the Recipient ai>d the interested Union representatives, if any, of the employees

involved for purpose of adequate replacement under Section 5333(b). If such negotiation shall not result in mutually satisfactory

agreement any party may invoke the jurisdiction of the Secretary of Labor to determine substitute fair and equitable employee

protective arrangements for application only to the particular Project, which shall be incorporated in this arrangement only as

applied to that Project, and any other appropriate action, remedy, or relief.

(25) If any employer of the employees covered by this arrangement shall have rearranged or adjusted its forces In anticipation of

the Project, with the effect of depriving an employee of benefits to which the employee should be entitled under this arrangement,

the provisions of this arrangement shall apply to such employee as of the date when the employee was so affected.
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FTAand 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Administration (FTA)

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name ofSubrecipient Agency: VN A@HCS

VNA@HCS shall comply with all applicable federal laws, regulalions, and requirements as
outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master Agreement and Federal

Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as

follows:

KFA award project description: (As required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA)

Amount: $8,643,178.00

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number: 20.509

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT

SOLICITATION

Federal Award Identification Number(FAIN):1385-2021-S

Federal Award Date: TBD

Contact information for 8ul>-awarding official:

Name: Patrick C. Merlihy Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail & Transit
Email: Patrick.C.Herlihy@dot.nh.gov Phone: 603-271-2449

Is this award for research and development? No

NI IDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrecipient Information:

Subrecipient Name; VNA@HCS

Subrecipient DUNS number: 789867421

Subrecipient SAM.GOV registration: 5QBS6

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Maura McQueeney
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: President/CEO

Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate: N/A
(An approved federally recognized indirect car/ rate negotiated between the subrecipient and the Federal
Government or, ifno such rate exists, eitlter a rate negotiated bet^veen the pass-through entity and the
subrecipient (in compliance with this part), or a De Minimis indirect cost rate ar defined in §200.414
Indirect. (F&A) co.st.s, paragraph (f).



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: 7/1/21 .End Date: 6/30/23

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated bv this action (contract/amendmeni)-.

For FFY: 2021 Section: 5311 Amount: $634,200.00

Total amount of FTA sub>award committed to the subrecipient (orieinal contract & amendments):

For FFY: 2021 Section: 5311 Amount: $634,200.00

Pass-through reouirements:

The subrecipient, VNA@HCS, agrees to meet all requirement imposed by the pass-through
entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is used in accordance with Federal
statutes,, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The subrecipient, VNA@HCS, agrees to any additional requirements that the pass-through entity
(NFIDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOT) in order for
the pass-through entity (NHDOT) to meet its own responsibility to the Federal awanding agency
(FTA) including identification of any required financial and performance reports.

The subrecipient, VNA@HCS, agrees to permit the pass-through entity (NHDOT) and auditors
to have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements as necessary for the pass-
through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and appropriate terms and conditions
concerning closeout of the subaward.

Date:

Name of authorizing subrecipient official: Maura McQueeney

Title of authorizing subrecipient official: Presidcn£/CEO

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official: f
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Home Healthcare. Hospice &
Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate (the Association), which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as of June 30, 2020, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net
assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management's Responsibi/ity for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Maine • New Hompshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • West Virgjnio • Arizona

berrydunn.com



Board of Directors

Home Healthcare. Hospice & Community Services, inc. and Affiliate
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all material
respects, the financial position of Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate
as of June 30, 2020, and the results of their operations, changes In their net assets and their cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Prior Period Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 2019 and for the year then ended were audited
by another auditor, whose report dated March 6, 2020 expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements.

Other Maffer

Effect of Adopting New Accounting Standards

As discussed In Note 1, the Association adopted new accounting guidance, Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606), and FASB ASU No. 2018-08. Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting
Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, and related guidance. Our opinion Is not
modified with respect to these matters.

f  U-L.

Manchester, New Hampshire
February 11, 2021



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2020 and 2019

ASSETS

2020 2019

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $  2,916,261 $  343,467
Investments 16,486 17,267
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,598,291 1,837.946
Other receivables 380,859 340,973
Prepaid expenses 231.568 224.029

Total current assets 5.143,465 2,763.682

Assets limited as to use 11,514,211 ^12,642,547

Property and equipment, net 2.455.254 2.657.038

Total assets S 19.112.930 $ 18.063.267

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Line of credit

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

-  $
890,003

1,094,280
2.211.990

4.196.273

14,033,130
883.527

533.503
1,300,311
1,002.194

31.262

2.867.270

14,267.831
928.166

14.916.657 15.195.997

$ 19.112.930 $ 18.063.267

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
Other operating revenue
Net assets released for operations

$ 11,583,216
2,792,163
177.847

$ 12.964.264
2.598.094
107.946

Total operating revenue 14.553.226 15.670.304

Operating expenses
Salaries and related expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation

11,520,776
4,324,791
393.511

11,958,073

4.751,034

431.929

Total operating expenses 16.239.078 17.141.036

Operating loss f1.685.8521 f1.470.7321

Other revenue and gains
Contributions and fundraising income
Investment income, net
Change in fair value of investments

678,399
183,351
589.401

634,736

171.101
724.386

Total other revenue and gains 1.451.151 1.530.223

(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses (234,701) 59.491

Net assets released for capital acquisition
- 2.835

(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor
restrictions $  (234.7011 $  62.326

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Net assets without donor restrictions

(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses
Net assets released for capital acquisition

$  (234,701) $ 59,491
2.835

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 1234.7011 62.326

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Investment income

Change In fair value of investments
Net assets released for operations
Net assets released for capital acquisition

118,821
3,364

11,023
(177,847)

12,822
13,833
58,120

(107,946)
(2.835)

Change in net assets with donor restrictions (44.639) (26.006)

Change in net assets (279,340) 36,320

Net assets, beginning of year 15.195.997 15.159.677

Net assets, end of year $ 14.916.657 $ 15.195.997

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $  (279,340) $ 36,320

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities

Depreciation 393,511 431,929
Change in fair value of investments (600,424) (782,506)
Investment income restricted for reinvestment (3,364) (13,833)
(Increase) decrease in the following assets:

Investments 781 671

Patient accounts receivable 239,655 (233,193)
Other receivables (39,886) (133,627)
Prepaid expenses (7,539) 25,621

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (410,308) 798,006
Accrued payroll and related expenses 92,086 (112,698)
Deferred revenue 2.180.728 (78.730)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1.565.900 (62.040)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (5,092,124) (4,235,594)
Proceeds from saie of investments 6,824,248 4,637,711
Capital expenditures (191.727) (110.564)

Net cash provided by investing activities 1.540.397 291.553

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from line of credit . 1.522,000
Repayments on line of credit (533.503) (1.655.622)

Net cash used by financing activities (533.503) (133.622)

Net increase in cash and cash equivaients 2,572,794 95,891

Cash and cash equivaients, beginning of year 343.467 247.576

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $  2.916.261 $ 343.467

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

1. Summary of Significant Accountlna Policies

Organization

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. is a non-stock, non-profit corporation in
New Hampshire whose primary purpose is to act as a holding company and provide management
services to its affiliate.

Affiliate

VNA at HCS, Inc., is a non-stock, non-profit corporation in New Hampshire whose primary
purposes are to provide home healthcare, hospice and community services.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Home Healthcare, Hospice &
Community Services, Inc.. and its affiliate, VNA at HCS, Inc. (collectively, the Association). They
are related through a common board membership and common management. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Association prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) established by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (PASS). References to U.S. GAAP In these notes are to the PASS Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC).

Basis of Presentation

U.S. GAAP requires the Association to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classification:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-Imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Association. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Association's management
and the board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors: Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions are to be met by
actions of the Association or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets.

-7-



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Income Taxes

The Association is a public charity under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). As
a public charity, the Association is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned
in accordance with Its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business Income Is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Association's tax positions and concluded that
the Association has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, excluding assets limited as to use.

The Association has cash deposits in a major financial Institution which may exceed federal
depository Insurance limits. The Association has not experienced any losses in such accounts.
Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides a reserve for payment adjustments by analyzing past history and
identification of trends for all funding sources in the aggregate. Management regularly reviews
data about revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the reserve which is netted against accounts
receivable. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have t)een exhausted are
applied against the allowance for payment adjustments.

Investments

Investments In short-term investment options are reported as current assets. Investments held for
long-term retum are reported as non-current assets.

The Association reports investments at fair value and has elected to report all gains and losses in
the (deficit) excess of revenue over expenses to simplify the presentation of these amounts in the
consolidated statement of operations, unless othenvise stipulated by the donor or State law.

-8-
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility risks. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments
will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in
the consolidated balance sheets.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include designated assets set aside by the Board of Directors and donor
contributions.

Property and Eauloment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Property is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances Indicate the
related carrying amount may not be recoverable. When required, impairment losses on assets to
be held and used are recognized based on the excess of the assets' carrying amount over the fair
value of the asset.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Services to all patients are recorded as revenue when services are rendered at the estirtiated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and others, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments
are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and In future
periods as final settlements are determined. Patients unable to pay full charge, who do not have
other third-party resources, are charged a reduced amount based on the Association's published
sliding fee scale. Reductions in full charge are recognized when the service is rendered.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the sen/ices provided by the
Association. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on
actual services rendered. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients
receiving skilled and non-skilled services in their home or facility. The Association measures the
period over which the performance obligation is satisfied from admission to the point when it is no
longer required to provide services to that patient, which is generally at the time of discharge. .

Providers of home health services to clients eligible for Medicare home health benefits are paid on
a prospective basis, with no retrospective settlement. The prospective payment is based on the
scoring attributed to the acuity level of the client at a rate determined by federal guidelines. As the
performance obligations for home health services are met, revenue is recognized based upon the
portion of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
prospective payment determined for the medically necessary services.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Providers of hospice services to clients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a per*
diem basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the Association's aggregate annual
Medicare reimbursement is below a predetermined aggregate capitated rate. Revenue is
recognized as the services are performed based on the fixed rate amount. As the performance
obligations for hospice services are met. revenue is recognized based upon the portion of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
predetermined aggregate capitated rate per day.

Because all of the Association's performance obligations relate to short-term periods of care, the
Association has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in FASB ASC Subtopic 606-10-
50-14 (a) and, therefore, is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the
reporting period.

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets
released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same
year as received are reflected as contributions without donor restrictions in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Newlv Adopted AccountInQ Pronouncements

In 2020, the Association adopted FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), and related guidance, which supersedes
accounting standards that previously existed under U.S. GAAP and provides a single revenue
model to address revenue recognition to be applied by all entities. Under the new standard, which
added Topic 606 to the ASC, entities recognize revenue when a customer obtains control of
promised goods or services in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ASU No. 2014-09 also requires entities to
disclose additional information, including the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The Association elected to adopt this ASU
retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial application; therefore, the
financial statements and related notes, have been presented accordingly. The balance of accounts
receivable at the beginning of 2019 was $2,132,956. The adoption had no significant impact for
the years ended June 30,2020 and 2019.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

In 2020, the Association also adopted FASB ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, which clarifies and
Improves the accounting guidance for contributions received and contributions made. The
amendments in this ASU assist entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted
for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of ASC Topic No. 958, Not-for-
profit Entities, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other accounting guidance; and
(2) distinguishing between conditional and unconditional contributions. This ASU was adopted by
the Association for the year ended June 30. 2020. Adoption of the ASU did not have a material
impact on the Association's financial reporting.

Uncertainty

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus disease (COVID-19),
a global pandemic. In response to the global pandemic. The Centers for Medicare & Medicaid
Services implemented certain relief measures and also issued guidance for limiting the spread of
COVID-19.

Local, U.S.. and world govemments have encouraged self-isolation to curtail the spread of COVID-
19, by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in many sectors and imposing limitations
on travel and the size and duration of group meetings. Many sectors are experiencing disruption to
business operations and may feel further impacts related to delayed government reimbursement,
volatility in investment retums, and reduced philanthropic support. There is unprecedented
uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and any
government actions to mitigate them.

The U.S. government has responded with several phases of relief legislation as a response to the
COVID-19 outbreak. Legislation enacted into law on March 27, 2020, called the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), a statute to address the economic impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak. The CARES Act, among other things, 1) authorizes emergency loans to
distressed businesses by establishing, and providing funding for, forgivable bridge loans; 2)
provides additional funding for grants and technical assistance; 3) delays due dates for employer
payroll taxes and estimated tax payments for corporations; and 4) revises provisions of the IRC,
including those related to losses, charitable deductions, and business interest.

The Association has received emergency federal grant funding under the CARES Act totaling
$600,871 to offset the cost impact. While management expects this matter to impact operating
results, the related financial impact and duration cannot be reasonably estimated. These funds are
reported in deferred revenue in the 2020 balance sheet. When it has been determined that the
conditions of the funding have been met, the Association will reflect the funds as other operating
income.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30,2020 and 2019

On April 16. 2020. the Assoclatjon received a loan from the U.S. Small Business Association
(SBA) within the CARES Act under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) In the amount of
$1,496,000. The loan is unsecured, has a two-year term with a maturity date of Aprir2022, bears
an annual interest rate of 1%, and shall be payable monthly with the first six monthly payments
deferred. The principal amount of the PPP is subject to forgiveness, upon the Association's
request, to the extent that the proceeds are used to pay qualifying expenditures, including payroll
costs, interest on mortgages, rent and utilities, incurred by the Association. It is the Association's
Intent to apply for forgiveness. Forgiveness is subject to the sole approval of the SBA. The
Association has chosen to follow the conditional contribution model for the PPP and has opted to
not record any income until forgiveness is received. The full amount of the PPP received is
reported as a refundable advance in the current liabilities section of the balance sheet at June 30
2020.

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

As of June 30, 2020, the Association has working capital of $947,192 and average days (based on
normal expenditures) cash and liquid investments on hand of 67 which includes only cash and
cash equivalents and excludes assets limited as to use, which are assets designated for long-term
investment by the board of directors or restricted by donors.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses and capital acquisitions not financed with debt or restricted funds (unfunded
capital expenditures), were as follows:

2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $2,916,261 $ 343 467
Investments 16,486 17!267
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,598,291 1,837,946
Other receivables 380.859 '34o!973

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures and unfunded capital expenditures within
one year $ 4.911.897 $ 2.539.653
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30,2020 and 2019

In addition, approximately $10.6 million in board designated funds at June 30. 2020 could be made
available to the Association upon approval by the board of directors. The Association also has
$1.000,000 In availability under the line of credit as of June 30. 2020.

3. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, stated at fair value, are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
U.S. Government and corporate bonds
Marketable securities

Mutual funds

Total investments and assets limited as to use

2020

624,939 $
2,382,139
5.818,290
2.705.329

2019

329,576
3.404,633
5,988,449
2.937.156

$ 11.530.697 $ 12.659.814

Investments without restrictions or designations

Assets limited as to use -

Board-designated for future use
Donor-restricted, time or purpose
Donor-restricted, perpetual In nature

Total assets limited as to use

Total Investments and assets limited as to use

Fair Value

16.486 $. 17.267

10,630,684
649,296
234.231

11,760,468
647,848
234.231

11-514^211 12.642.547

$ 11.530.697 $ 12.659.814

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction
between market participants and also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to
maximize the use of observable Inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The fair value hierarchy within ASC Topic 820 distinguishes three levels of
inputs that may be utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for Identical assets or liabilities in active markets that
the entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable Inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

-13-



HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The fair values of all of the Association's investments, which are presented in the following table,
are measured on a recurring basis using Level 1 inputs with the exception of corporate bonds
which are valued based on quoted market prices of similar investments and categorized as level 2
investments.

Level 1 Level 2 Total

Cash and cash equivalents $ 624,939 $ -  $ 624,939
Corporate bonds ■ 1,327,046 1,327,046
Government bonds 1,055,093 1,055,093
Equity securities 5,818,290 5,818.290
Mutual funds 2.705.329 2.705.329

Total $ 10.203.651 S 1.327.046 S 11.530.697

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30. 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Total

Cash and cash equivalents $ 329,576 $ -  $ 329,576
Corporate bonds - 1,125,332 1,125,332
Government bonds 2,279,301 2,279,301
Equity securities 5,988.449 5,988,449
Mutual funds 2.937.156 2.937.156

$ 11.534.482 $ 1.125.332 $ 12.659.814

Investment Income and gains for cash equivalents and investments consist of the following:

2020 2019

Net assets without donor restrictions

Investment income, net of fees
Change in fair value of investments

Restricted net assets

Investment income

Change in fair value of investments

Total

$  183,351 $ 171,101
589,401 724.386

3,364 13.833
11.023 58.120

787.139 $ 967.440
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2020 and 2019

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2020 2019

Land $ 482,961 $ 482.961
Building and improvements 5,384,931 5.384.931
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 3.193.917 3.121.014

Total cost 9,061,809 8.988,906

Less accumulated depreciation 6.606.555 6.331.868

Total property and equipment, net $ 2.657.038

5. Line of Credit

The Association has an unsecured $1.000.000 line of credit payable on demand with a local bank
with interest at 1% above the bank's base rate (4.50% at June 30, 2020). There was no
outstanding balance at June 30. 2020 and $533,503 outstanding at June 30. 2019.

6. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consists of the following:

2020 2019
Time or purpose restrictions for:

Haskell fund accumulated earnings $  304,618 $ 304.814
Johnson Family fund accumulated eamings 7,009 7.009
Respite - 4.089
Hospice accumulated earnings 3,208 3.208
Capital acquisition 105,000 -

Operations 107,593
Meal sites - 1,337
Hospice memorial garden 130,154 134,641
Donated motor vehicles . 41,758
Barbara Duckett scholarship 99.307 89.486

Total S  649.296 S 693.935
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Restrictions that are perpetual in nature for:
Hospice
Operations
Johnson Family fund
Bednar endowment fund

Haskell endowment fund

Jones endowment fund

10,000
8,623

1032
50,000
120,570
34.836

10,000
8,623
10,202
50,000

120,570

34.836

234.231 $ 234.231Total 5

7. Endowments

The Association has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
this interpretation, the Association classifies as a donor-restricted endowment (a) the original value
of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent donor-restricted
endowment gifts, and (c) accumulations to the donor-restricted endowment made in accordance
with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation Is added to
the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as net assets
with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Association in a
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

In accordance with the UPMIFA, the Association considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund;
(2) The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
(3) General economic conditions;
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation;
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(6) Other resources of the Association;
(7) The investment policies of the Association;
(8) The spending policy; and
(9) Funds with deflciencies.

Return Oblectives and Risk Parameters

The investment portfolio is managed to provide for the long-term support of the Association.
Accordingly, these funds are managed with disciplined, longer-term investment objectives and
strategies designed to meet cash flow and spending requirements. Management of the assets is
designed to attain the maximum total retum consistent with acceptable and agreed-upon levels of
risk. The Assodation benchmarks its portfolio performance against a number of commonly used
indices.
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Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Association relies on a total retum strategy in
which investment retums are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Association targets an asset allocation strategy
wherein assets are diversified among several asset classes. The pursuit of maximizing total retum
is tempered by the need to minimize the volatility of retums and preserve capital. As such, the
Association seeks broad diversification among assets having different characteristics with the
intent to endure lower relative performance in strong markets In exchange for greater downside
protection in weak markets.

Spending Policy

The Association's spending policy is equal to investment retums. All available investment retums
earned on endowments are expended, or released from endowment in the year eamed.

The following summarizes changes in endowment assets:

Without

Donor

Restrictions

Balance June 30. 2018 $ 11,363,748

Investment income, net 169,336
Realized and unrealized gains on

investments 723,838
Net assets released from restrictions

Use of board designated funds for
operations 1496.4541

Balance June 30. 2019 11,760,468

Investment income, net 183,351
Realized and unrealized gains on

investments 589,401
Net assets released from restrictions

Use of board designated funds for
operations f1.902.5361

Balance June 30, 2020 $10.630.684

With Donor Restrictions

Purpose Perpetual In
Restrictions Nature

$  346,821 $ 234,231

9,153

38,445

(79,584)

314.835

3,364

234,231

11,023
(14.387)

$  314.835 $ 234.231

Total

$11,944,800

178,489

762,283
(79,584)

M96.4541

12,309,534

186,715

600,424
(14,387)

f1.902.5361

$11.179.750
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8. Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is as follows:

2020 2019

Medicare $ 8,644,749 $ 8,648,185
Medicaid 607,871 950,622
Other third-party payers 2,033,186 2,929,195
Private pay 297.410 430.262

Total $ 11.583.216 $ 12.964.264

Laws and regulations goveming the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future govemment
review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action Including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The Association believes that It is in
substantial compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. However, there is at least a
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near
term. Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined
to be recoverable or payable are included in net patient service revenue in the year that such
amounts become known.

The Association provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Association does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue.

The Association provided services in other health-related activities, primarily to Indigent patients, at
rates substantially below cost. For certain activities, services were provided without charge. The
Association estimates the costs associated with providing the other health-related activities by
applying Medicare cost report methodology to determine program costs less any net patient
revenue generated by the program. The estimated costs Incurred in these activities amounted to
$908,362 and $1,104,471 for the years June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Association is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through local
community support and state grants. Local community support consists of contributions received
directly from the public. United Way, municipal appropriations, and Investment income eamed from
assets limited as to use. Federal and state grants consisted of monies received from the State of
New Hampshire.
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In assessing collectability, the Assodation has elected the portfolio approach. This portfolio
approach Is being used as the Association has similar contracts with similar dasses of patients.
The Association reasonably expects that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of
contracts would not differ materially from considering each contract separately. Management's
judgment to group the contracts by portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected In each
portfolio category. As a result, management believes aggregating contracts (which are at the
patient level) by the particular payer or group of payers results in the recognition of revenue
approximating that which would result from applying the analysis at the individual patient level.

9. Functional Expenses

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows:

2020 2019

Program services
Salaries and benefits $ 9,899,498 $10,338,358
Program supplies 541,049 468,821
Travel 382,312 520,520
Contract services 1,248,462 1.255,855
Other operating expenses 1,019,549 1.149,276
Depreciation 338.144 400.181

Total program services 13.429.014 14.133.011

•i

Administrative and general
Salaries and benefits 1,621,278 1,619,715
Travel 66,783 90,925
Contract services 899,697 1.056,333
Other operating expenses 166,939 209,304
Depreciation 55.367 31.748

Total administrative and general 2.810.064 3.008.025

Total $16.239.078 $17.141.036

Management's estimate of cost allocations at a functional level Is based on Medicare cost report
methodology.
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10. Contingencies

Malpractice Insurance

The Association maintains medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis. The
Association is subject to complaints, claims, and litigation due to potential claims which arise in the
normal course of business. U.S. GAAP requires the Association to accrue the ultimate cost of
malpractice claims when the incident that gives rise to claim occurs, without consideration of
insurance recoveries. Expected recoveries are presented as a separate asset. The Association
has evaluated its exposure to losses arising from potential claims and determined no such accrual
is necessary at June 30, 2020. The Association intends to renew coverage on a claims-made
basis and anticipates that such coverage will be available in future periods.

Litigation

The Association is involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. After consultation
with legal counsel, management estimates these matters will be resolved without a material
adverse effect on the Association's future financial position or results of operations.

11. Retirement Plan

The Association sponsors a defined contribution plan. The retirement contributions by the
Association amounted to $130,516 and $144,683 for 2020 and 2019, respectively.

12. Concentration of Risk

The Association grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are Insured under third-party payer agreements. Following is a summary of accounts
receivable, by funding source:

2020 2019

Medicare 62 % 66 %
Medicaid and other third-party payers 3g 24

Total 100 % 100 %

13. Subseouent Events

For financial reporting purposes, subsequent events have been evaluated by management
through February 11. 2021. which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available
to be issued.
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CHARLES PRATT
SKILLS
Hands on, critical thinker with a proven track record of transforming underperforming businesses and
teams as an effective leader, capable of working closely with diverse groups of people to achieve
superior results In manufacturing operations. Experienced in multiple aspects of management and
human resource responsibilities including vetting, interviewing and hiring of new employees as well
as payroll management.

EXPERIENCE

Program Manager • Transportation Program, VNA at HCS • Keene, NH • September 2019 - Present

Responsible for the dally operations of agency transportation programs, including the City Express public
transportation and paratransit services, Friendly Bus door to door service for seniors and Medical Express
service. Responsible for adherence to all Department of Transportation regulation and reporting, program
budgeting, and overseeing driver and dispatch staff. Attend community meetings and forums to
coordinate with other transportation entitles and the public related to transportation issues.

SUPERVISOR • CONTINENTAL CABLE • HINSDALE, NH • JANUARY 2019 - JUNE 2019

Responsible for On Time Delivery, Scheduling of Machines & Employees In the Assembly area & in the
Machine shop. Accurate reporting & documentation of steps to ensure Quality Control measurements
during each step of assembling order, to adhere to government regulations for defense systems.
Providing department meetings as needed, and weekly Management reviews.

PLANT MANAGER • FORTRESS PACKAGING • FAIRFIELD, CA • OaOBER 2016 -OCTOBER 2018

Instrumental in the start-up of a new production company. Managing the day to day operations, while
Instructing and monitoring safety quality and on time performance. Recorded 2 years without Injury or
returned sale while training an entirely new, unexperienced workforce to uphold a high level of
standards In support of perfect production quality. Experience loading and unloading trucks as well as
conducting facility tours with new potential accounts and performing routine, hands on maintenance of
new equipment.

PLANT MANAGER • MULTiaU. PACKAGING • KUTZTOWN PA 19530 • OaOBER 2010 - MARCH 2015

Charged with changing the climate and culture of the facility. Developed and Implemented strategies to
transform poorly performing production facility Into a profitable one. Reduced set-up times, worked
closely with vendors to reduce Inventory of raw materials, Increasing profitability. Cross trained
employees resulting in a greater flexibility In the workforce.

PLANT SUPERINTENDENT • INNERPAC NE • KEENE NH 03446 • SEPTEMBER1997 - OCTOBER 2010

Responsible for the day to day operations of the manufacturing of the plant. Did scheduling of
machinery, personnel and ordering of raw materials. Oversaw the staff, participated in dally meetings
with the General Manager and customer service. Conducted weekly updates with floor personnel.
Coordinated with shipping on incoming and outgoing shipments. Learned how to run and setup all
machines.

EDUCATION
DIPLOMA • JUNE 1982 • KEENE HIGH SCHOOL



Sarah M. Mosher

EXPERIENCE:

Home Healthcare Hospice and Community Services, Keene, NH
Senior Staff Accountant (Oct 2020 - Present)

Grant Billing - Healthy Starts and Transportation
Bank Reconciliations (MIP Accounting Software)
Supervise cash posting and Grant Billing
Assist with Month End Close

Assistant Controller (Jan 20J 9 - Oct2020)
Supervise 2 employees
Oversee Grants and AR Receipts and Cash Reconciliation
Co-coordinate month-end close

Senior Staff Accountant (Jul 2019 — Dec 2019)

Grant Billing - Healthy Starts and Transportation
Bank Reconciliations (MIP Accounting Software)
Supervise cash posting and Grant Billing
Assist with Month End Close

Grant Accountant (2017 -Jun 2019)
Grant/Program Billing / Authorizations (BEAS Options software)
Data Analytics/Reconciliation Projects (Microsoft Office Suite)
Reviewing Accounts Receivable Work

Accounts Payable Accountant (2016-2017)
Accounts Payable
Cash Posting / Reconciliation
Payroll Backup (Harpers Payroll Software)

Channing Bete Co., South Deerfield, MA
Finance / MR (2008 - 2016)

Payroll for 200+ Employees (Ceridian HR/Payroll Web Software)
General Ledger Journal Entries (JD Edwards Accounting Software)
Sales Commissions

Human Resources Support (Sage ABRA HR Software)
Accounts Receivable (Microsoft Office Suite)

MacMlllin Co., Keene, NH
Project Manager Assistant (2005 - 2008)

Correspondence
Contract Processing (Viewpoint Accounting Software)
Accounting and Legal Research

EDUCATION:

Keene State College
Bachelor ofScience, Business Management, w/Honors

Minor in Economics

Baker College
Additional Accounting Coursework

Intermediate Accounting, Taxation, Auditing, Business Law

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT:

Board Member - Keene Day Care Center

Town Auditor - Town of Roxbury
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